THE ANGUILLA ANIMAL RESUCE FOUNDATION ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING June 29, 2005

The fourth annual general meeting of the Anguilla Animal Rescue Foundation was held at the Teacher Resource Center on Wednesday July 7th 2005. Mr. Joseph Norris Payne as past president presided over the meeting and presented the opening prayer.

The agenda was approved by Amy Williams and seconded by Jackie Pascher.

There were 25 members in attendance.

Joseph Norris Payne	Carolyn Andrews	Roger Belkie
Jamien Carter	Christine Carty	Christine Cutler
Terry Hodge	Helen Huckle	Clarissa Lloyd
Maggie Mitchell	Michele Morland	Jackie Pascher
Barbara Owen	Michelle Owen-Vasilis	Ludi Richardson
Melissa Richardson	Shelagh Richardson	Isabel Rosario
Diane Sheehan	Monica Trimble	Althea Turner
Jackie Watson	Rakev Webster	Amy Williams
Suzie Donahue		

The Secretary, Suzie Donahue read the minutes of the third Annual General Meeting of July 7, 2004. There were no corrections or amendments and the minutes were approved by Amy Williams and seconded by Barbara Owen.

There were no matters arising from the minutes.

The President's Report:

The Acting President Chris Carty welcomed everyone to the meeting and presented her report (below), a copy of which is included in the minute book for the official record. Before the report she informed the group of the unexpected death of member Daryl Gurvey, whose wife Gayle is an active member, and that AARF had sent flowers of condolence to the funeral in Canada.

President Carty reflected that in a few weeks time, on September 14th, it would be 5 years since a group met to discuss the creation of an animal welfare organization for Anguilla and that today we have a fully paid membership of 85. She noted that this year has had its ups and downs, but noted the teamwork and dedication of the last few months in particular has been quite incredible.

She announced that a total of 275 dogs and cats were sterilized at no cost to their owners under our 2004 spay and neuter program and shared with the membership other events that this active group had been involved in including: International Homeless Animals Day

A Silent Auction with Second Chance Pet Adoptions in Carey North Carolina in which AARF received \$1380.00 US dollars. And our continued participation at the Soroptimist's Christmas Fair, Annual post office membership drive and the ABC Flower and Garden Show.

She thanked and congratulated Lynn Bartlett for her expertise in selling AARF merchandise as well as informing her customers about AARF and what we do.

President Carty also mentioned the spare change drive and collection boxes as a continuing source of income and expressed our appreciation to all the businesses that support this ongoing fundraiser.

The successes of our Animal Adoption Days at Ashley's and Lake's were shared with the group as well as our Spay and Neuter Program for 2005 that will focus on these animals adopted through AARF as well as those families with need based circumstances. She told the group that we were not receiving any outside grants or funding and that at this time we were very close to our goal of raising \$9000 for this project.

Also mentioned was the success of the trap neuter release program at Cap Juluca and the challenge and hugely successful Yard Sale in which AARF raised over \$5000 US dollars. Chris thanked everyone for their support of this project.

Education Chairman, Michelle Owen – Vasilis and Teacher Shelagh Richardson were thanked for their involvement in the Kathy Melby Memorial Project at Road School. There were 7 winners of the art competition this year that was established to honor Kathy and her love of animals.

She also noted the work of the Policies and Procedures committee who have revised the bylaws and encouraged others to nominate members for the executive committee for the election next year. And that new adoption procedures are nearing completion at this time.

President Carty spoke of recent improvements that have been authorized by the executive committee that include play pens for kittens and puppies to encourage adoptions as well as give them room for exercise and the purchase of large dog traps to help in capturing wild predator dogs.

Also noted was a recent meeting with Pegasus officials who encouraged us to apply for grants and AARF's acceptance as a new member of WSPA (World Society for the Protection of Animals)

In closing she thanked all that had supported AARF both with time & financial assistance, and encouraged our student members to keep up the good work. She reflected that AARF is proud of what we have accomplished, but we recognize that we still have a long way to go in achieving our goal of making Anguilla a better place for the animals.

The Official President's Report:

PRESENTATION

Good evening AARF Members and Supporters:

After the AGM last year we took careful note of your comments and complaints, so one of the changes we have made this year is to make this annual report slightly shorter and hopefully sweeter.

In a few weeks time, on September 14th, it will be 5 years since a group of 15 animal lovers met at Paradise Lounge in North Side, to discuss the creation of an animal welfare organization for Anguilla, so our first real milestone is not too far away. Today we have a fully paid membership of 85, and I notice that a few more have been added to that number this evening, so we can assume that our membership is now moving towards the 90•s•.

In those first months of 2000 we received so much encouragement. We were also given some very well meaning advice from other animal lovers in the community, who refusing to join our ranks, told us that we were wasting our time and did we realize that this was Anguilla, where an organization such as this would never work. Well, 5 years on, and we have to thank both of these factions for their comments. One gave us hope, with their words of encouragement; the others gave us the will to battle on and to show them that we could make a difference.

This year has had it•s• ups and downs – I think those of us involved in the daily "housekeeping" would become totally surprised if life with AARF turned into easy sailing. Even so, I think we will all admit that the teamwork and dedication of the last few months in particular has been quite incredible.

We left the AGM last year after a very busy spay and neuter weekend with our visiting Vets and Technicians from New Hampshire. Our grant commitments and the program for the year were completed at Morlens Veterinary hospital by Dr. Vanterpool & Veterinary Technician Amy Williams with the help of volunteers, who worked weekends and sometimes during the week, when Dr. Vanterpool had the additional available time.. We are pleased to announce that a total of 275 dogs and cats were sterilized at no cost to their owners under our 2004 program.

We have organized and attended many events since the last AGM.

On August 21 2004, AARF promoted the International Homeless Animals Day. With the support of Ashley•s• Supermarket, who allowed us to have a booth on their property, we had a very successful day. With Education as our theme, Michelle Owen-Vasilis encouraged the children to learn all about AARF while painting their faces with fun animal characters. Of course we also took the opportunity to sell merchandise, attract new members and were lucky enough to find homes for 5 puppies.

In September, Second Chance Pet Adoptions in Carey North Carolina, held a silent auction, and with our help, one of the prizes was a 7-day stay on Anguilla. From the proceeds of this auction AARF received 1380.00 US dollars. We could never have done this without the support of Shoal Bay Villas who donated the accommodation. The prize was made more attractive with contributions from Straw Hat, Roy•s•, Hibernia, Prickly Pear Dash & Scilly Cay restaurants, and also Cliffside Riding Center and the Anguilla Wellness Center.

At the Soroptimist's Christmas Fair we raised almost 500 US dollars through the sale of merchandise and 10 puppies found new homes.

In January, our annual post office membership drive was very successful. Memberships and merchandise sales raised 777.50 US. Again 4 puppies were fortunate to find new homes.

On February 19, we had our usual booth at the ABC Flower and Garden Show. There was a state funeral that weekend, not to mention the final rundown before the elections but in a few short hours our volunteers managed to raise 570.62 US.

AARF merchandise is for sale year round at Bartlett•s• Collection at the South Hill round a bout. The support that Lynn gives to AARF is overwhelming; whenever tourists visit her shop she never fails to promote our work, display our T-shirts, hats and bags and to remind them to leave their change in our collection box. Lynn we thank you.

Our spare change drive and collection boxes are a continuing source of income as well, and we have added about 15 collection spots throughout the island. We appreciate all the businesses that support this ongoing fundraiser.

Throughout the past year we have been having great success with our animal adoption days. We have to thank both Ashley•s• and Lake•s• supermarkets for their support with this undertaking. Both businesses have been extremely supportive. Through our Adoption Days and Clinic adoptions AARF has been able to place over 100 puppies and kittens, as well as older dogs and cats so far this year. We would like to thank all of those that have opened their hearts and sometimes already

full homes to these deserving animals. To encourage not only the AARF adoptions but also to stop the births of unwanted puppies and kittens each adoption includes a free spay or neuter for the adoptee.

Another program that continues year-round is the Trap Neuter Release program at Cap Juluca. This program is the "baby" of our secretary Suzie Donahue, otherwise known as the Cat Lady. Every day of life you can find Suzie at Cap Juluca feeding and tending the hotel*s* cat colony. Since the program started, a total of 15 cats have been trapped, sterilized and released

back at Cap Juluca. When Suzie is off-island Mrs. Christine Cutler very kindly takes over and helps maintain the program.

In many ways our biggest challenge of the year was the April 23rd Yard Sale, which because of

torrential rain was actually held on 30th! I am proud to tell you that we raised 5,336.99 US. This money will go a very long way to help pay for this year•s• spay and neuter program. The Agricultural Department has to be applauded for their patience. After the rains of the weekend of

23rd they allowed our tents, tables and other items to remain on their property until the following week, and after the event they very kindly trucked all of our garbage to Corito. So many people volunteered and helped to make this event possible - those who spring-cleaned their cupboards, closets and storerooms giving us the items to sell, those who sorted, priced, trucked & loaned equipment and tents & those who sweated in the sun putting up & taking down those tents. And of course, those who sold, and those who purchased the items. Thank you everyone.

Our education chairperson Michelle Owen Vasilis again organized the Kathy Melby Memorial project at the Road School. This is an art competition sponsored by family and friends of Kathy, who was a great animal lover and supporter of AARF. This year there were 7 prize winners from grades 1 through 5 with Keri Richardson from grade 3 taking the prize for over-all winner. The children received small cash prizes, a beanie bear and an AARF T-shirt. The over-all winner also received a copy of the book Paddy the Goat that saved Rainbow Island, written by Jo-Ann Mason. Again we have to thank teacher Shelagh Richardson for all her help with this project.

Many people here this evening will be pleased to hear that one of the items addressed over the past few months has been a complete overhaul of the AARF By-laws. The biggest bone of contention in the past has always been the nomination committee and the voting process at the AGM. We had hoped, that this year, more members would have taken the opportunity to make nominations for the executive committee. Fortunately enough people did, and we can present a slate of officers this evening, but maybe next year we will get more and be able to have a real vote. The Policies and Procedures committee is also nearing completion of updated animal release & animal adoption forms, and other clinic policies.

The executive committee has recently authorized other improvements which we hope will encourage more adoptions and assist the community in the control and capture of unwanted animals in their neighborhoods. Play pens for puppies and kittens have been ordered so that the animals can get exercise during the day as well as being on show at the front of the clinic, and dog traps have been ordered to add to the cat traps already on inventory. The donation of building materials from both Mr. Christopher Cutler and Dr.

Patrick Vanterpool has encouraged us to forge ahead with plans for constructing a more permanent dog-run at the rear of the clinic, again improving the environment of the larger animals waiting for adoption.

In March of this year, the S & N sub-committee made an extraordinary proposal to the executive. They did this, after very carefully reviewing the 2004 program. They determined that it was certainly much more cost effective and more efficient to use the services of Morlens Veterinary Hospital than to bring in technicians from overseas. More importantly, smaller numbers at the clinic at any given time, would mean less stress for the animals and volunteers not to mention the workload involved with planning and organization. Female animals could be admitted at any time of the year, rather than having to wait for a specific Spay and Neuter event such as the one held in July 2004, at which time they could be quite well pregnant or nursing.

So, at the request of the S & N sub-committee an Executive decision was made to budget 9000.00 US to the S & N program for 2005. All of this money would be raised by AARF, and no grants or corporate funding from overseas would be requested. We are proud to announce that half way through the year we are well on our way to achieving this goal with confidence. The animals targeted this year will be those that are adopted through AARF as well as those families with need based circumstances

However, this does not mean that we intend to cut all links with grant agencies. In early May of this year Amy and myself met with visiting Pegasus officials in St. Martin, who after hearing our report, urged us to apply for a grant later this year.

On May 11,we were invited to apply to join WSPA [the World Society for the protection of animals], they had heard about us through their affiliation with the Antigua & Barbuda Humane Society. Just

last week on June 20th our application was accepted. WSPA is a Global Network that spans 130 countries and includes 557 animal protection societies. AARF is proud to be their newest member. Funding, advice, training and a wealth of educational resources will now become available to us through this membership.

Finally, thanks to all of you here that have supported AARF both with your time as well as your financial assistance. A huge thank you to our student members, keep up the good work & remember we are depending on you to be sitting up here in the not too distant future. We are proud of what we have accomplished but recognize that we still have a long way to go with each spay or neuter, rescue and adoption we know that we are achieving our goal of making Anguilla a better place for the animals.

Thank you	
-----------	--

The Treasurer's Report:

Mr. Payne then introduced the Treasurer; Mr. Jimmy Carter who presented a detailed Treasurer's report as of December 31st, 2004. This report had been prepared and reviewed by the accounting firm of KPMG. The report showed assets of US \$37,2066.77 represented by US \$21,604.14 in cash and the remainder in inventory and equipment less \$1502.80 in debits for a total net assets as of December 31,2004 of US \$35,703.97.

Current figures as of June 29, 2005 are US\$4605.28 cash & EC \$9,152.77 cash & \$13,907.83 in savings for a total in cash of US\$21,928.32. Mr. Carter was thanked for his report and for doing a superior job as treasurer.

Volunteer of the Year Award:

The President Chris Carty told the membership that volunteers come in many forms – mentioning that some are able to offer AARF large quantities of time while others are able to assist us with specific projects or much needed financial support and that we are grateful for all of these people that are able to help us in any way.

President Carty announced that the AARF Volunteer of the Year for 2005 is a family that has been a huge supporter of AARF and our projects and how this family continually informs their clients and contacts about AARF and has been responsible for numerous donations to our organization, as well as providing AARF assistance with discounts for our social events or donations of wonderful prizes especially for our upcoming bingo game on July 9th.

She also told the group that the winning family offer continual support such as assistance with feeding of a feral cat colony, volunteering at the spay/neuter clinics, donations of building supplies to improve our clinic and paying the expenses of daily boarding care and shots for a group of rescued pupplies the found.

She noted that their ongoing support of our goal to make Anguilla a better place for the animals is something we are so thankful for and announced that the AARF Volunteer of the Year award for 2005 goes to THE CUTLER FAMILY – CHRISTOPHER AND CHRISTINE.

A crystal award was then presented to Christine Cutler and a round of applause was given to the family.

New Officers:

The following slate of officers for the 2005 - 06 year was approved by the membership.

President Christine Carty
Vice President Heather Wallace
Secretary Suzie Donahue
Treasurer Jamien Carter
Elected Ordinary Member Jacqueline Pascher

Elected Ordinary Member Althea Turner

Other Business

Mr. Payne opened the floor to questions and concerns from members. The following points were discussed – the enforcement of animal cruelty laws and what a solution might be for the numerous poisonings.

There being no other business the President called for the meeting to be adjourned and Barbara Owen seconded the motion.

The members gathered at Corner Bar for pizza after the meeting.